
 

 
PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD 

Wednesday, September 2, 2020 
Public Session 4:00 p.m.  
 
Adjournment 6:00 p.m. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86277013304?pwd=YVN2dXNLZ0
RVQ1ExVktrajB1aGpaUT09 

Meeting ID: 862 7701 3304 
Passcode: 319hTZ 
One tap mobile 
+16699009128,,86277013304#,,,,,,0#,,478144# US (San 
Jose 

 

A G E N D A 
 

A copy of the agenda, complete with backup materials, may be reviewed in the District Office, 3450 Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa, 
beginning the Monday prior to the Wednesday Board Meeting.  Office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday or 
as otherwise posted.  Agendas are always posted at, the District Office, the Board/Conference Room 24 and on our web site at 
www.pousd.org.   
ADA Compliance: In compliance with Government Code § 54954.2(a), the Piner-Olivet Union School District, will, on request, make this 
agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with 
Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who 
need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the 
meeting should contact Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary to the Superintendent, Piner-Olivet Union School District, 3450 Coffey Lane, 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 522-3000 at least two days before the meeting date. 

www.pousd.org 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 2.  ROLL CALL 
 3. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 

   Persons addressing the Board without giving previous notice should realize that the action upon any request may be delayed.   This is a time for members of  
   the  audience to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda.  Individual speakers will be allowed three minutes to address the Board under this  
   agenda. The Board will not respond but may place the subject on a future Board Agenda.  Anyone desiring an item to be placed on the prepared agenda  
  shall  notify the Secretary ten (10) working days prior to the meeting.  
 

 4. AGENDA MODIFICTION  
 

 5. CONSENT ITEMS 
All matters listed under “consent items” are considered by the Board to be routine and will be enacted upon in one motion. The public has a right to comment on 
any consent item.  At the request of any member of the Board, during “agenda modifications” any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given 
individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.  Members of the public may request the Board to place a “consent item” on the regular agenda during 
“agenda modifications.” 
 
“It came to our attention that while the Board meeting agenda was posted at least 72 hours prior to our Board meeting on 
Wednesday August 12, 2020, the documents associated with the Board Agenda were not posted until the Board meeting.  So 
while the Board took action to approve the various action items at the August 12, 2020, Board meeting, because the documents 
associated with the action items were not provided in advance to the public, the Board will be taking action tonight to ratify the 
actions taken by the Board at its August 12, 2020, Board meeting.  This will allow the public to provide any additional comments 
at this meeting prior to the Board ratification action.” 

 
5.1   Approval of Addendum to the Director of Innovative Learning Employment Agreement  (Consent 1) 

(Pg. 3) 
5.2   Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Olivet Families (Consent 2) 

(Pgs. 4-48) 
5.3   Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Charter Parent 

Club(Consent 3) (Pgs. 49-71) 
5.4   Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Schaefer Families  
 (Consent 4) (Pgs. 72-115) 
5.5   Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Educational 
        Foundation(Consent 5) (Pgs. 116-146) 
5.6   Approval of Resolution #537 Regarding the Education Protection Account (EPA) (Consent 6)  

1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86277013304%3Fpwd%3DYVN2dXNLZ0RVQ1ExVktrajB1aGpaUT09&sa=D&ust=1598473218319000&usg=AOvVaw0mrC4wiFy1TF0ogD2kL-WS
https://www.google.com/url?q=https%3A%2F%2Fus02web.zoom.us%2Fj%2F86277013304%3Fpwd%3DYVN2dXNLZ0RVQ1ExVktrajB1aGpaUT09&sa=D&ust=1598473218319000&usg=AOvVaw0mrC4wiFy1TF0ogD2kL-WS


 (Pgs. 147-149) 
5.7   Approval of Resolution # 538 Regarding Rescission of Elimination or Reduction of Certain 
        Classified Services(Consent 7) (Pgs. 150-151) 
5.8   Approval of Resolution # 539 Declaring Instructional Method for 2020-2021 School Year 
        (Consent 8)  (Pgs. 152-153) 
 
 
 
5.9   Ratification of Closed Session Action between the District and Piner-Olivet Classified 
        Association Regarding Return Impact and Effects on the CSEA Bargaining Unit MOU(Consent 9) 
 (Pgs. 154-167) 

5.10   Ratification of Closed Session Action between the District and Piner-Olivet Educators’  Association             
Regarding the COVID-19 Pandemic and School Opening During the 2020-2021 School Year MOU 

         (Consent 10) (Pgs. 168-183) 
5.11 Approval of the 2020-2021 Revised Budget for Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter 

School, Schaefer Charter School, Piner-Olivet Charter School, and Northwest Prep Charter School 
(Consent 11) (Pgs. 184-186) 

5.12  Approval of Declaration of Surplus Property with a Value of Less than $2,500 (Consent 12) 
5.13  Approval of MOU between Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools and the Local Educational 

Agency for the North Coast Teacher Induction Program Participating County Offices of Education, 
and Participating School Districts and Employing Commences on July 1, 2020, and terminates on 
June 30, 2021(Consent 13) (Pgs. 187-191) 

5.14 Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of June 17, 2020(Consent 14) (Pgs. 192-195) 
5.15 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of June 29, 2020(Consent 15) (Pgs. 196) 
5.16 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of July 7, 2020 (Consent 16) (Pgs. 197-198) 
5.17 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of July 10, 2020 (Consent 17) (Pg. 199) 
5.18 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of July 15, 2020 (Consent 18) (Pg. 200) 
5.19 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of July 29, 2020 (Consent 19)(Pg. 201) 
5.20 Approval of Minutes of Special Board Meeting of July 30, 2020 (Consent 20) (Pg. 202) 
5.21 Approval of Personnel Action Report (Consent 21) (Pg. 203) 
5.22 Approval of Vendor Warrants (Consent 22) (Pgs. 204-208) 
5.23 Approval of Routine Budget Updates (Consent 23) (Pgs. 209-216) 

         5.24 Approval of Williams Settlement Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary  
        Reporting Period from April 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020(Consent 24) (Pg. 217) 

 
6. EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE LEADERSHIP   

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

2



 
 

Piner-Olivet Union School District 
Addendum 

 
 

ADDENDUM TO CONTRACT DATED APRIL 8, 2020, FOR DR. TINA RASORI TO SERVE 
AS DIRECTOR OF INNOVATIVE LEARNING FOR THE PINER-OLIVET UNION 
SCHOOL DISTRICT  
 
The April 8, 2020, Contract between Dr. Tina Rasori (“Director”) and Piner-Olivet Union School 
District (“District”), provided the Director would be employed by the District for a one year term 
from July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021, serving a .50 Full Time Equivalent (“FTE”) position and 
complete 103 days of service and be compensated at a prorated (for the .50 FTE) Step 10 of the 
Management Salary Schedule along with $2,200 for two Masters Degrees and $1,100 for a 
Doctorate Degree. 
 
The purpose of this Amendment to the Contract is to reduce the service amount from .50 FTE to 
.40 FTE, which will result in a reduction from 103 days of service to 82.4 days of service during 
the 2020-2021 school year on the same salary terms as the Contract, except prorated at .40 based 
on the reduced number of service days.  The days the Director will be required to work will be 
scheduled by the District Superintendent and may result in an unequal number of service days 
per calendar month (e.g. there may be more service days scheduled at the beginning of the school 
year for programmatic planning purposes). 
 
Furthermore, this Addendum provides notice, in accordance with Section 5.b. of the Contract, 
the Contract for services will not be renewed for the 2021-2022 school year. 
 
Board Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 
 
________________________ _____________________  __________ 
Cindy Pryor, Board President  Dr. Tina Rasori, Director  Date Signed 
 
Board Member Janae Franicevic     ____ (AYE/NO) 
Board Member Mardi Hinton     ____ (AYE/NO) 
Board Member Mindy Mohr     ____ (AYE/NO) 
Board Member Cindy Pryor     ____ (AYE/NO) 
Board Member John Way     ____ (AYE/NO) 
 
AYES:___  NOES:___  ABSENT/NOTVOTING:___ 
 
 
 

3



 
2020-2021 

OLIVET FAMILIES 
REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A 

SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION 
 

 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



 
2020-2021 

SCHAEFER FAMILIES 
REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATIONAS A 

SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION 
 

 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



 
2020-2021 

PINER-OLIVET EDUCATIONAL 
FOUNDATION 

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A 
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION 

 
 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



       

 

RESOLUTION OF THE PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING 

BOARD REGARDING THE EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the voters approved Proposition 30 on November 6, 2012;  

 

 WHEREAS, Proposition 30 added Article XIII, Section 36 to the California Constitution 

effective November 7, 2012;  

 

 WHEREAS, the provisions of Article XIII, Section 36(e) create in the state General Fund 

an Education Protection Account to receive and disburse the revenues derived from the 

incremental increases in taxes imposed by Article XIII, Section 36(f);   

 

 WHEREAS, before June 30th of each year, the Director of Finance shall estimate the total 

amount of additional revenues, less refunds that will be derived from the incremental increases in 

tax rates made pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36(f) that will be available for transfer into the 

Education Protection Account during the next fiscal year; 

 

 WHEREAS, if the sum determined by the State Controller is positive, the State 

Controller shall transfer the amount calculated into the Education Protection Account within ten 

days preceding the end of the fiscal year;   

 

 WHEREAS, all monies in the Education Protection Account are hereby continuously 

appropriated for the support of school districts, county offices of education, charter schools and 

community college districts; 

 

 WHEREAS, monies deposited in the Education Protection Account shall not be used to 

pay any costs incurred by the Legislature, the Governor or any agency of state government;  

 

 WHEREAS, a community college district, county office of education, school district, or 

charter school shall have the sole authority to determine how the monies received from the 

Education Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction;  

147



 

 WHEREAS, the governing board of the district shall make the spending determinations 

with respect to monies received from the Education Protection Account in open session of a 

public meeting of the governing board;  

 

 WHEREAS, the monies received from the Education Protection Account shall not be 

used for salaries or benefits for administrators or any other administrative cost;  

 

 WHEREAS, each community college district, county office of education, school district 

and charter school shall annually publish on its Internet website an accounting of how much 

money was received from the Education Protection Account and how that money was spent;  

 

 WHEREAS, the annual independent financial and compliance audit required of 

community college districts, county offices of education, school districts and charter schools 

shall ascertain and verify whether the funds provided from the Education Protection Account 

have been properly disbursed and expended as required by Article XIII, Section 36 of the 

California Constitution;  

 

 WHEREAS, expenses incurred by community college districts, county offices of 

education, school districts and charter schools to comply with the additional audit requirements 

of Article XIII, Section 36 may be paid with funding from the Education Protection Act and shall 

not be considered administrative costs for purposes of Article XIII, Section 36. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

148



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: 

 

1. The monies received from the Education Protection Account shall be spent as 

required by Article XIII, Section 36 and the spending determinations on how the money will be 

spent was made in open session of a public meeting of the governing board of the Piner-Olivet 

Union School District; 

 

2. In compliance with Article XIII, Section 36(e), with the California Constitution, 

the governing board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District has determined to spend the 

monies received from the Education Protection Act as attached. 

 

 

DATED:  August 12, 2020    

 

 

 

 

 Cindy Pryor, Board President    ____________ 

 

 Mardi Hinton, Board Vice-President   ____________ 

 

 Mindy Mohr, Clerk     ____________ 

  

 John Way, Board Member    ____________ 

 

 Janae Franicevic, Board Member   ____________ 

 

 

   

 

 

Ayes  ___________ Noes  ______________ Absent or Not Voting  ___________ 

 

  

 

   

      ____________________________________ 

      President, Piner-Olivet Governing Board 

 

 

149



BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

 

PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 

 

 

In the Matter of the Elimination/Reduction   ) 

of Certain Positions in the Classified  ) RESOLUTION NO. 538 

Service and Directing Notification of  ) 

Classified Employees____________  ) 

 

 

WHEREAS, The Board of Trustees of the Piner-Olivet Union School District adopted Board 

Resolution No. 534 on June 3, 2020 regarding the reduction or elimination of certain services 

within the classified service; and 

WHEREAS, on June 29, 2020, the Governor of the State of California signed Senate Bill (“SB”) 

98, which states “From July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021, inclusive, the governing board of a school 

district, county office of education, community college district, or joint powers authority shall 

not implement layoffs or releases of any permanent or probationary classified employees of the 

school district, county office of education, community college district, or joint powers authority 

who hold classifications in, or are assigned to positions in, nutrition, transportation, or custodial 

services;” and 

WHEREAS, following the enactment of SB 98, the State Senate Committee on Budget and 

Fiscal Review released a Legislative Intent letter, which states, “If as of July 1, 2020, a school 

district…has provided a layoff notice to an employee covered by this section, but the 60-day 

notice period has not concluded, then the employer is barred from carrying out the layoff from 

July 1, 2020, to June 30, 2021;”  

150



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, pursuant to SB 98, the Board rescinds the 

following eliminations set forth in Board Resolution No. 534.                      

 

 Custodian - eliminate one (1) 8.00 hour/day position 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, any reductions and/or eliminations set forth in Board 

Resolution No. 534 which are not listed above are authorized to proceed, as according to the law. 

The foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Piner-Olivet 

Union School District on August 12, 2020, by the following vote: 

AYES:      __________ 

NOES:      __________ 

ABSENT: __________ 

    __________________________________ 

               President, Board of Trustees 

       

 

 

 I, _____________________, Secretary/Clerk of the Board of Trustees, do hereby certify 

that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted by the Board of 

Trustees of the District at its meeting on August 12, 2020.  

 

151



Piner-Olivet Union School District 

Resolution Declaring Instructional Method for 2020-2021 School Year 

Resolution No.539 

 

WHEREAS, Section 34 of Senate Bill 98 (“SB 98”), signed by the Governor on June 29, 2020, 
addresses the ability of Local Educational Agencies (“LEAs”) to offer distance learning in the 
2020-2021 school year; and 

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 43503 subparagraph (2) of subdivision (a) was added by 
SB 98 to allow LEAs to offer distance learning under either of the following circumstances: 

“(A) On a local educational agency or schoolwide level as a result of an order or 
guidance from a state public health officer or a local public health officers. 

(B) For pupils who are medically fragile or would be put at risk by in-person instruction, 
who are self-quarantining because of exposure to COVID-19.”; and 

WHEREAS, on June 26, 2020, both the State Senate and Assembly issued letters to the Senate 
Journal for the purpose of clarifying the intent of SB 98, as it relates to distance learning 
(“Clarifying Letters”); and 

WHEREAS, the Clarifying Letters state that Section 34 of SB 98 was intended to provide LEAs 
with flexibility in determining how K-12 instruction would be provided to meet the needs of 
students, families and the community during the COVID-19 pandemic such that LEAs would 
have discretion to adopt a distance learning, hybrid, or mixed-delivery instructional model; and 

WHEREAS, both the State Senate and Assembly acknowledged in the Clarifying Letters that 
while the intent of the Legislature was for LEAs to offer in-person instruction in the 2020-2021 
school year to the greatest extent possible, Education Code Section 43503(a)(2)(A) was not 
intended to require an LEA to seek out or receive approval from a state or local public health 
officer prior to adopting a distance learning model, but to simply consult and collaborate with 
state or local public health officials in making this determination; and 

WHEREAS, the Clarifying Letters also stated that it was not the Legislature’s intention to 
prevent an LEA from adopting a distance learning, hybrid or mixed-delivery instructional model 
to ensure safety, but rather to give LEAs flexibility to determine what instructional model the 
LEA will adopt during the COVID-19 pandemic, taking into account the needs of their students 
and staff, and their available infrastructure, provided the model adheres to an applicable state or 
local public health order or guidance; and  

WHEREAS, the June 12, 2020, Sonoma County Roadmap to Reopening Schools incorporates 
the state and local public health guidance that Sonoma County LEAs must follow; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District (“District”) has 
reviewed the Sonoma County Roadmap to Reopening Schools in determining which  

152



 

instructional model best meets the needs of the District, its students and staff, in light of the 
District’s available infrastructure and safety concerns. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet 
Union School District has determined that at this time in-person direct instruction cannot be 
provided in compliance with the Sonoma County Roadmap to Reopening Schools. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School 
District has determined that in-person direct instruction will not be offered as an available 
instructional model August 17, 2020 through October 2, 2020. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School 
District will be offering the following instructional methods during the 2020-2021 school year: 

Virtual Learning during August 17, 2020 through October 2, 2020. [Synchronous Learning and 
Asynchronous Learning]  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District as 
its meeting on the 12 day of August, 2020 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Mindy Mohr 
Clerk, Governing Board 
Piner-Olivet Union School District         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



7/27/2020

165



166



167



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN

PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND

PINER-OLIVET EDUCATORS’ ASSOCIATION
REGARDING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC AND SCHOOL OPENING DURING THE 2020-2021 

SCHOOL YEAR.

EFFECTIVE AS OF JULY 1, 2020

Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) and Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association (POEA), 
jointly known as the Parties (“Parties”) enter into this Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) 
regarding the issues related to COVID-19 and the opening of schools virtually during the 2020-
2021 school year.  The Parties shall reconvene as soon as practical following the start of the 
2020-21 school year once virtual learning is underway, in order to complete negotiations on the 
impacts on working conditions of a change from 100% Virtual Learning to a hybrid or in-person 
model.  

The “Navigating a Safe Return to School: POUSD Fall Re-Opening Plan”, presented to the POUSD
Board on July 7, 2020, is the articulation of a vision, not a binding document. It shall not be used 
as a directive to unit members to work beyond the scope defined within the POUSD and POEA 
Collective Bargaining Agreement and MOU. The POUSD and POEA Collective Bargaining 
Agreement and MOU shall be used as the basis of any unit member discipline, and as a 
standard for evaluations. The Re-Opening Plan shall not be used as a precedent beyond the 
2020-2021 school year.

As of the date of this MOU, the Parties recognize that the COVID-19 pandemic necessitates 
significant modifications to the operation of schools to minimize the health risks associated 
with COVID-19 infection for all students, their families, and staff while also providing equitable 
access to education for students.

The Parties acknowledge that students and staff may need to self-quarantine, become 
quarantined, and/or the District may need to close a learning cohort or close school(s) on an 
emergency basis to slow the spread of infection and illness arising from COVID-19 during the 
2020-2021 school year.

As a minimum standard, the Parties shall adhere to the State's and Sonoma County's highest 
protective standards of student, educator and community health of the COVID-19 guidelines, 
directives, and requirements as of August 1, 2020, issued by the Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention (“CDC”), California Department of Public Health (“CDPH”), the California 
Department of Education (“CDE”), and the Sonoma County Public Health ("SCPH") department. 
The parties agree to meet as soon as possible if necessary, to negotiate the impact and effects 
of any changes in working conditions as a result of revisions or updates to those guidelines. The 
parties will adhere to the Sonoma County Roadmap to Safe Reopening as of the document 

168



dated July 8, 2020. (see link) 
https://www.scoe.org/blog_files/Sonoma%20County%20Road%20Map%20to%20Safe%20Reop
ening%20FINAL%20v5.pdf  

Unless otherwise noted below, the provisions of this MOU shall supersede any provisions of the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement between the Parties that are in conflict for the duration of this 
MOU, or until modified by mutual agreement of the District and the Association. The Parties 
affirm the obligation to comply with all provisions of the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(“CBA”) not in conflict with this MOU. Further, the Parties affirm that all provisions of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act (“EERA”) California Government Codes 3540 et seq. 
apply and remain in effect, and further affirm that the provisions of this MOU are intended to 
comply with, and shall be interpreted consistently with the requirements of law including but 
not limited to SB 98 (2020) and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

The Parties agree to the following:

1.0 DEFINITIONS
1.01 “Classroom” – is any academic, learning, assessment, or instructional space used 
by students, certificated, classified, parents, administrators, or other adults on a school 
campus. This applies to both indoor and outdoor learning spaces, and includes libraries, 
computer or scientific laboratories, study halls, or any other common space on a school 
campus.

1.02 “Common Equipment” – is any school equipment or structures that is designed 
to be used or shared by more than one individual. This includes, but is not limited to, 
technology, books, computers, recess/playground equipment, physical education 
equipment, pens, pencils, etc.  
        
1.03 “Common Space” – is any indoor or outdoor space on a school campus designed 
or commonly used by more than one group of individuals. This includes, but is not 
limited to, school offices, nurse stations, playgrounds, blacktops, quads or outdoor 
gathering spaces, hallways, bathrooms, etc.  

1.04 “Face Coverings” – cloth face coverings or masks as recommended by the CDC, 
state, and local public health guidance to ensure the State’s and SCPH’s highest 
protective standards of student, educator and community are adhered to.

1.05 “Hand Sanitizer” – this product must contain at least 60% alcohol. Ethyl alcohol is 
preferred and should be used when there is the potential of unsupervised use by 
children.

1.06 “Personal Protective Equipment” – this refers to equipment that is used to limit 
or prohibit the transmission or infection of COVID-19 from person to person. It is also 
commonly referred to as Essential Protective Equipment or Essential Protective Gear 

169



and includes face coverings, masks, N95 masks, face shields, neck guards, barriers, 
gloves, goggles, etc.

1.07 “Physical Distancing” – also known as social distancing to help decrease the 
spread of the virus by increasing the space between people to at least six (6) feet and 
reducing the number of different people with whom a person interacts. However, 
unless there is mutual agreement to change the distancing guidelines, the six (6) feet 
guidelines shall remain in place.  

1.08 “Virtual Learning” means distance learning, i.e., instruction in which the pupil 
and instructor are in different locations, and pupils are under the general supervision of 
a District teacher.   

2.0 Meetings and Gatherings

2.01 The parties intend that all meetings shall be held virtually during 100% Virtual 
Learning (including but not limited to, staff meetings, 504s, IEPs, SSTs, professional 
development, committee meetings, district meetings, staff gatherings, parent meetings, 
and parent-teacher conferences). However, such meetings shall be conducted in person 
if required by law; the parties agree to meet in advance in case circumstances arise 
affecting this.  Unit members shall reserve the right to attend all meetings virtually. All 
meetings shall be scheduled during non-instructional time.

2.02 Large in-person gatherings (i.e. school assemblies) are prohibited, unless the 
parties have reconvened to address large in-person gatherings in the event applicable 
health guidelines change and have agreed they may be held.

2.02.1 Back-To-School Night, Open House, and in-person Promotion/Graduation 
meetings or ceremonies shall be held virtually for the 2020-2021 school year.

2.03 Notwithstanding sections 2.01 and 2.02, all other provisions of the CBA regarding 
meetings apply.

3.0 Air Ventilation and Filtration

3.01 The District shall ensure all HVAC systems operate on the mode which delivers 
the most fresh air changes per hour, including disabling demand-controlled ventilation, 
and open outdoor air dampers to the maximum capacity that an individual HVAC unit 
can handle without damage.  

3.01.1 Air filters shall be MERV-13 at locations where HVAC units can 
accommodate this filter they shall be changed at the recommended 
intervals. No unit member will be required to work in a room without MERV-13 

170



or comparable filtration. The District shall identify specific units that can 
accommodate MERV-13 and those that cannot accommodate MERV-13. This 
information will be provided prior to the first day of instruction.

3.01.2 A log of each site's completed HVAC filter change will be maintained and 
available to each site’s Association representative.

3.01.3 Portables and/or other rooms without adequate central HVAC and 
windows or doors that open directly to the outside, shall be equipped with low 
noise HEPA air filters with a large enough capacity and flow rate for the square 
footage of the room.

3.02 The Parties affirm that public health officials indicate that proper ventilation is 
necessary to minimize the transmission and infection from COVID-19 especially for 
individuals in a closed space for extended periods of time by reducing the airborne 
concentration of the virus and thus the risk of transmission and infection of COVID-19 
through the air. All locations with functioning windows shall be encouraged to keep 
them open depending on weather, temperature, or air quality conditions.

4.0 Health Screening, Testing, Notification, and Contact Tracing

4.01 The District shall require that all employees and visitors conduct a daily self-
assessment for symptoms associated with COVID-19 infection prior to entering school. 
Non-unit District employees and/or the District nurse shall perform temperature checks 
prior to employees and/or visitors entering campuses.

4.01.1 Health screening, testing, notification, and quarantine protocols and 
procedures will be created prior to in-person learning occurring.

4.01.2 All students and staff will be trained on these protocols and procedures 
prior to in-person and/or hybrid learning occurring.

4.02 Staff and visitors with any symptoms consistent with COVID-19 or who have had
close contact with a person with COVID-19 shall not be permitted on District sites.

4.03 Upon notification that an employee, visitor, or student has been infected with 
COVID-19, the District shall initiate contact tracing procedures by notifying the Sonoma 
County Department of Health Services, which shall direct notification of all persons who 
may have come in contact with the infected individual. The District shall notify the 
Association President of the location(s) where the infected individual was present on 
the school campus during the suspected incubation/active infection period.

171



5.0 VIRTUAL LEARNING

5.01 Consistent with Education Code Section 43503 as amended by SB 98, if as a result 
of the orders and guidelines issued by the CDC, state, or local public health officers, the 
District is unable to provide a safe and healthy in-person learning environment for all 
students, distance learning may be offered for students.

5.02 Regardless of the District’s ability to operate in-person learning, virtual learning 
is permitted five days per week for students who are medically fragile or would be put 
at risk by in-person learning instruction, or who are self-quarantining because of 
exposure to COVID-19.

5.03 Under a 100% virtual learning model all students will receive synchronous and 
asynchronous instruction and content five days per week through virtual learning. The 
lesson design and type of instruction provided shall be at the discretion of the classroom 
teacher consistent with existing practices and policies on District and site supervision 
input and guidance.

5.03.1 All content shall be aligned to grade-level standards that is provided at a 
level of quality and intellectual challenge substantially equivalent to in-person 
instruction.

5.03.2 All students will receive daily live interaction with certificated employees 
and peers for purposes of instruction, progress monitoring, and maintaining 
school connectedness. This interaction may take the form of internet or 
telephonic communication, or by other means permissible under public health 
orders and consistent with this MOU.  

5.03.3 This daily live interaction shall be designed to meet the needs of 
students.

5.03.4 If daily live interaction is not feasible as part of regular instruction, the 
District shall develop, with input from parents, the Association, and other 
stakeholders, an alternative plan for frequent live interaction that provides a 
comparable level of service and school connectedness. Alternative plans shall 
not require unit members to work beyond their contract hours without their 
consent.

5.04 The District shall ensure equitable access to education for all students and shall 
confirm and/or make provisions so that all pupils have adequate access to connectivity 
and technological devices to participate in the educational program and complete 
assigned work.

172



5.05 The District shall provide academic and other supports in virtual learning that are 
designed to address the needs of pupils who are not performing at grade level, or need 
support in other areas, such as English learners, pupils with exceptional needs, pupils in 
foster care or experiencing homelessness, and pupils requiring mental health support.

5.05.1 In order to provide equitable access to the educational program, special 
education and other related services, for pupils with an individualized education 
plan (IEP), the District shall ensure that all IEPs can be executed in a virtual 
learning environment.

5.06 According to Education Code 43501 as amended by SB 98 the minimum daily 
instructional minutes for grades TK-K (180 daily minutes), 1-3 (230 daily minutes), and 4-
12 (240 daily minutes) are in effect for the 2020-2021 school year.

5.06.1 When providing virtual learning, academic content, classwork, 
independent work, assignments, projects, synchronous instruction, 
asynchronous instruction, and live interaction shall all be combined to meet the 
daily minimum minutes per grade level. Daily lesson plans, assessments, and 
instructional methodologies used shall be at the discretion of the classroom 
teacher, consistent with existing practices and policies on District and site 
supervision input and guidance.

5.07 Bargaining unit members shall determine the means and methods for providing 
virtual learning based on appropriate standards-based instruction, their resources, and 
their students’ abilities to access the curriculum, consistent with existing practices and 
policies on District and site supervision input and guidance. Bargaining unit members 
shall be responsible for planning appropriate standards-based instruction, responding to 
parents and students in a timely manner, supporting diverse learners, building rapport 
and connections with students, regularly monitoring student work completion and 
participation, providing students feedback, and reporting non-participation to the site 
administrator for additional outreach and follow-up.

5.08 Bargaining unit members are expected to work and be available during their 
normal contractual workdays. To provide students and parents with consistency and to 
avoid conflicts, office hours/interactive instruction shall be scheduled during the same 
times each week. Bargaining unit members shall have time each week designated to 
provide student support, feedback, and clarification and may be conducted via phone, 
email, and/or other virtual platforms.

5.09 Interactive instruction should include content that requires student interaction 
with their teacher/classmates, content that engages a student in making a response, 
content that engages students in a visual way, and provides the bargaining unit member 
opportunities to provide the student encouragement and feedback.

173



5.10 Bargaining unit members providing service in a total (non-hybrid) virtual learning 
model may work remotely or may access and work from their assigned classroom/office 
workspace as they deem necessary. Site administrators may request notice from 
members who may be coming to a worksite. Unit members will use reasonable efforts 
to comply. Bargaining unit members shall check in upon arrival to any District site and 
shall be responsible for following all safety and health requirements as set forth in this 
MOU.

5.11 Members shall not be required to record lessons or live instruction. Any 
recording of live/synchronous virtual instruction is required to have the consent of the 
teacher and the principal.

5.12 The District shall provide all bargaining unit members the necessary equipment 
and supplies in order to provide virtual learning, including but not limited to technology, 
laptop computers, display boards, video/recording devices, headphones, and any other 
items normally provided during in-person learning, as requested. 

6.0 Virtual Learning Accountability Requirements

6.01 Unit members and the District shall document participation and daily attendance 
for each pupil on each school day, in whole or in part, for which virtual learning is 
provided.

6.01.1 Teachers shall take daily attendance using the District student 
information system. Teachers shall collect evidence of daily participation by 
students in virtual learning using the categories described below and shall be 
prepared to present it when reasonably requested. Student non-participation 
shall be reported to site administration.

6.01.1.1 evidence of participation in online activities;

6.01.1.2 completion of regular assignments and/or assessments; and

6.01.1.3 contacts between employees of the District and pupils or
parents or guardians.

6.01.2 The District shall develop written procedures for tiered re-engagement 
strategies for all pupils who are absent from distance learning for more than 
three school days or 60% of the instructional days in a school week. Following 
the teacher’s attempt to re-engage pupils, these procedures shall require school 
site administrators or non-certificated District staff to make contact with the 
pupil’s parents or guardians pursuant to the requirements of Education Code 
Sections 43504(f).

174



6.01.3 Classroom teachers shall regularly communicate with parents and 
guardians regarding a pupil’s academic progress consistent with established 
practices and procedures for traditional in-person learning.  

7.0 LACK OF SUBSTITUTE COVERAGE

7.01 In the event a virtual class is without a teacher or a substitute teacher, the 
school site administrator will cover the class or assign appropriate coverage from the 
bargaining unit not primarily assigned to teach a virtual class to provide any necessary 
instructional minutes to students, to provide daily live interaction, or to assist students 
as needed.

7.02 If no certificated bargaining unit member is available to provide substitute 
teaching coverage, the cohort may be instructed by an administrator until such time as a 
bargaining unit member or certificated substitute teacher becomes available. Classified 
employees shall not substitute teach a cohort or virtual class but may be used to assist 
students already assigned work by their regular classroom teacher.

8.0 Classroom Preparation Days and Professional Development 

8.01 In addition to what is already provided for in the CBA, bargaining unit members 
shall be provided one additional Classroom Preparation Day prior to the start of the 
return of students. This day shall be a non-student day with no school site meetings or 
trainings, to allow unit members to prepare their classroom spaces for in-person and/or 
virtual learning.  

8.02 Prior to the start of students on August 17, 2020, there shall be two and a half 
(2.5) days of Professional Development and Training and two and a half (2.5) days of 
Teacher preparation days, including the day referenced above in 8.01.

8.03 The shortened Wednesday schedule will be followed for 2020-2021 school year, 
with rotation to include teacher-directed times, professional development, and staff 
meetings. Optional “Wired Wednesday” professional developments will also be offered 
during teacher-directed times.

8.04 Unit members shall report to work according to the bargaining unit member 
start time in the CBA or consistent with past practice.

8.05 In accordance with POUSD’s and POEA’s mutual desire to maintain the highest 
level of safety standards possible, during 100% Virtual Learning distribution of students 
supplies and material shall be kept to a minimum. All distribution of materials shall be 
scheduled and coordinated by the site administrator. Materials such as technology 
devices which may be used by another student will be sanitized before re-distribution.

175



8.06 All student supplies and materials distributions shall be done by site 
administrators. Unit members will not be required to distribute supplies and materials; 
those doing so shall coordinate with the site administrator.

8.07 Any and all in-person adjunct duties, committee assignments, or extra-duty 
positions shall be cancelled unless such duties, assignments, or positions can be 
reasonably performed in a virtual setting.  

9.0 2020-2021 Academic Calendar

9.01 The Parties agree to meet immediately to review and revise the current 2020-
2021 school year calendar to schedule all necessary days based on the academic 
instructional model(s) adopted by the Board.

9.02 The first day of instruction on August 17, 2020 under 100% Virtual Learning will 
include a teacher-led orientation for parents and students to virtual learning, learning 
platforms, software programs, etc.

10.0 Training Days or Hours

10.01 Unless already provided for in the CBA, no more than two (2) additional Training 
Days or equivalent work hours shall be required by the District. Any days added to the 
total work year shall be compensated consistent with past practice.

10.02 One hour regularly scheduled office hours during the teacher workday on 
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday and Friday.

10.03 Wednesdays during Virtual Learning:

1. Up to morning break shall be instructional and directed student time.
2. After break shall be teacher directed District grade level planning, teacher 

directed site level planning, teacher planning and/or collaboration time.
3. After lunch, follow shortened Wednesday schedule.

11.0 LEAVES/ACCOMMODATIONS

11.01 The Family First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA, expiring 12/31/20) provides 
for qualifying leaves in addition to those leaves already provided pursuant to law and 
the Collective Bargaining Agreement. These leaves can be used in addition to or instead 
of a unit member's regular leave options, depending on whether certain criteria are met 
as set forth in the FFCRA.

176



12.0 TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS

12.01 The following procedures shall apply to the assignment of distance learning 
remote work:

12.01.1 The District shall post and notify all bargaining unit members of remote 
assignment vacancies via district email. Vacancies shall also be posted on the 
District website. The vacancy shall contain the title and brief description of the 
position, the credential requirements for the position, and a closing date which is 
at least three (3) instructional days following the posting date. 

13.0 PAY AND BENEFITS

13.01 Unit members shall continue to receive their contractual compensation and 
benefits provided they are performing duties as assigned and consistent with the rights 
and responsibilities set forth in this MOU. If extracurricular duties can still occur 
remotely, bargaining unit members shall continue to receive stipends and/or additional 
pay, as provided for under the collective bargaining agreement.

13.02 Reimbursement to bargaining unit members for reasonable costs associated with 
purchasing equipment, improving home internet bandwidth, or instructional materials 
not provided by the District directly related to providing virtual learning shall be made 
consistent with the District's purchasing process. This shall include the requirement 
that, in advance of any purchase, written approval must be obtained from the principal, 
and from the CBO or designee. After approval, requests for reimbursement for the 
supplies and equipment must be submitted with an itemized receipt. Such 
reimbursement shall be compensated up to $500 per unit member for the 2020-2021 
school year.

14.0 EVALUATION

14.01 Article XI of the CBA on Evaluations remains in effect except as set forth 
herein. Evaluation forms for the 2020-2021 school year shall include preprinted 
prominent notation that the evaluation is to be viewed in the context of working under 
the COVID-19 pandemic, which has greatly affected teaching and working 
conditions. These circumstances shall be considered and documented in the final 
evaluation document. Administrators retain the right to visit in-person classes. Upon 
notification in advance, administrators will be provided access both to learning 
platforms and to virtual classes when the unit member is engaged in live instruction, in 
order to support teachers with growth in instructional practices.

177



15.0 SPECIALISTS/ELECTIVES

15.01 Specialists and elective teachers shall prepare daily lesson plans based on 
academic content standards that provide an equivalent level of rigor as in-person 
learning for stable student cohorts engaged in virtual learning.

15.02 Daily work schedules, for programs other than regular daily instruction, shall be 
provided by the District or school site administration.

15.03 Until a transition to hybrid or in-person instruction occurs, assignments that 
typically have large performance-based classes (e.g., music) shall be taught virtually.

16.0 SPECIAL EDUCATION, COUNSELORS, AND PSYCHOLOGISTS

16.01 The District and POEA agree to meet via video or tele-conference at the request 
of either party to address implementing guidance from the CDE and/or federal 
Department of Education in order to provide equitable and appropriate education for 
students with special needs. The Parties intend to protect the health of all unit 
members and see that special education services remain consistent with the 
requirements of the IDEA, and in compliance with Education Code 56345 as amended by 
SB 98.

16.02   Special education teachers will meet the needs of their students, working on 
progress towards IEP goals, through the use of a virtual platform.  During 100% virtual 
learning, the parties intend that meetings will be held virtually unless such meetings are 
required by law to be in person; the parties agree to meet in advance in case 
circumstances arise affecting this. Services pursuant to an IEP may be required by law 
to be in-person. Unit members shall reserve the right to attend all meetings virtually. 
Lessons will be adapted to meet the needs of students in a digital learning environment 
and ensure that lessons and activities are appropriate, as documented in the student's 
IEP. 
16.03 Related Service Providers (Adaptive PE, OT, etc.), will prepare appropriate virtual 
learning activities that can be performed at home, if feasible and consistent with the 
requirements of Section 5.05.

16.04 Virtual tools shall be used to hold necessary IEP meetings and to meet and 
collaborate on a student's IEP. The parties intend that during 100% virtual learning, 
meetings shall be held virtually unless required by law to be in person; the parties agree 
to meet in advance in case circumstances arise affecting this. Members will be consulted 
regarding their availability prior to the scheduling of an IEP. Unit members shall reserve 
the right to attend all meetings virtually.

178



16.05 During 100% virtual learning, School Psychologists shall provide virtual and/or 
telephone appointments for students for social emotional and/or behavioral needs as 
deemed necessary by the psychologists, as well as communicate with families to provide 
support. Any appointments scheduled shall be conducted by telephone or virtual tools.

16.06 During 100% virtual learning, Counselors shall provide virtual or telephone 
appointments to students for academic counseling, monitoring, and guidance. These 
appointments or conversations shall be conducted via email, telephone, or other virtual 
tools, as appropriate.

16.07 During 100% virtual learning, Speech and Language Pathologists shall provide 
individual and/or group virtual lessons. These lessons shall be conducted via email, by 
telephone, or other virtual tools, as appropriate.

17.0 PUPIL PERSONNEL SERVICES STAFF AND OTHER STAFF NOT ASSIGNED A CLASS
ROSTER

17.01 All certificated bargaining unit members not assigned as a classroom teacher and 
other staff working in these positions (including but not limited to counselors, speech-
language pathologists, psychologists, social workers, teachers on assignment, academic 
coaches, and nurses) shall maintain all physical distancing, PPE and safety requirements 
in this MOU.

17.02 During 100% virtual learning, Staff described in Section 17.01 shall provide their 
services virtually.

17.03 Physical distancing and PPE requirements are to be maintained in all 
workstations and office settings. If physical distancing of 6 feet is not possible due to 
office/room size limitations, and in order to maintain student confidentiality or privacy, 
alternative and effective safety devices shall be used such as plexiglass barriers and/or 
face shields with neck drapes. Time spent in proximity of less than six (6) feet between 
individuals shall be minimized to the extent possible and strictly limited to no more than 
15 (fifteen) minutes daily.

18.0 COVID-19 EXPOSURE AND COHORT/SCHOOL SITE CLOSURE

18.01 Staff, administrators, and visitors who are sick are expected to remain home and 
shall not be permitted on a District site while sick.

18.02 The District will work with the SCPH Sonoma County Department of 
Health Services to ensure that all staff and students being quarantined are given 
information or other resources on how to properly quarantine and provide access to 
medical professionals if illness manifests itself.

179



18.03 Upon direction by the State of California or SCPH, the District shall close the
entire school site or entire District as necessary and the academic program shall
transition to a total virtual learning model until such time as it is deemed reasonably 
safe to return to an in-person or hybrid learning model.

18.04 All closed classroom spaces, worksites, rooms, school sites, or other District 
facilities shall be thoroughly cleaned and disinfected prior to being re-opened for in-
person learning.

18.06 The District shall communicate any and all decisions about closures and re-
opening to all bargaining unit members at a school site or district wide as appropriate. 
Such communication shall be by email or by telephone.

19.0 TRAINING

19.01    Consistent with SB 98 requirements and SCPH, CDC, and state guidelines, all staff 
unit members shall be trained in the COVID-19 related topics and protocols that are 
relevant for the duties of their positions, including but not limited to:

19.01.1   Reinforcing the importance of health and safety practices and
protocols;

19.01.2   Cleaning and disinfecting protocols;

19.01.3   Physical distancing requirements, personal protective equipment,
and stable classroom cohort protocols;

19.01.4   Health screening protocols and procedures;

19.01.5   Protocols on responding to individuals who manifest symptoms
associated with COVID-19 while at school;

19.01.6   Protocols on responding to individuals with a family member or
someone in close contact with a student or staff member who tests positive for
COVID19;

19.01.7   Protocols on responding to a student or staff member testing
positive for COVID-19; and

19.01.8   Any other orders or guidelines in operation at a District site with
which a bargaining unit member is expected to understand and comply.

180



19.02 The District shall provide appropriate software and training for bargaining unit 
members required to engage with students in a virtual setting either as part of in-person 
learning, virtual learning, or a hybrid model.

  
20.0 ACCESS LIMITATIONS AND ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

20.01 The District shall develop and implement a plan to minimize access to school 
sites, and limit non-essential visitors, facility use permits, and volunteers.  

20.02 The Association's rights of access shall not be limited by the above except to the 
extent consistent with safeguarding the health and safety of students and staff, 
consistent with Sonoma County Roadmap to Safe Reopening as of July 8, 2020.

21.0 GRIEVANCE AND EXPEDITED ARBITRATION

21.01 While all provisions of this MOU are subject to the negotiated grievance 
procedure in the CBA, it is the Parties' mutual intent to expeditiously, efficiently, and 
effectively address any issues or concerns as they arise. The Parties recognize and 
acknowledge that COVID-19 conditions and altered working conditions as a result are 
fluid and potentially change rapidly. The Parties commit to each other that the best 
interests of students, compliance with the law, service to the school community, and 
health and safety are paramount interests, and they pledge to cooperate in addressing 
and resolving problems as collaboratively and timely as possible.

21.02 Due to the potential urgency of disputes that cannot be resolved as set forth 
above, and that are connected to providing and maintaining safe and healthy schools for 
all students, staff, and their families, according to the provisions of this MOU, an 
expedited arbitration process may be requested by either Party. If so requested, the 
expedited process can be initiated only into by mutual agreement of both Parties, to 
proceed as follows:

21.02.1   The expedited process will skip all levels after an informal
conference and move directly to binding arbitration before an arbitrator
mutually selected by the Parties.

21.02.2   At least ten (10) workdays prior to the hearing, the Parties shall
exchange a list of witnesses each intends to call as well as any documents or
other material the party expects to be introduced not previously provided.

21.02.3   Time limits for the hearing shall be mutually agreed upon by the
Parties. The following shall be prohibited unless required by the arbitrator for
a written decision: written briefs, court reporters and electronic
transcription.

181



21.02.4   The arbitrator shall issue oral decisions at the close of the hearing
unless the parties mutually request a written decision, and decisions of the
arbitrator shall be binding and final and shall not constitute precedent in
other cases.

21.02.5   Each party shall bear its own expenses, and the arbitration fees shall
be shared equally by both parties.

22.0 CONSULTATION RIGHTS AND RESERVE RIGHT TO FURTHER NEGOTIATE

22.01 The District and Association agree to meet monthly if needed during the 
pandemic to discuss issues that arise in connection with this MOU or COVID-19 
conditions affecting the workplace. The Association retains the right to consult on 
textbooks, curricula, educational methods, standards, and assessments. The Parties 
share the goal of evaluating the instructional models being used and to improve student 
learning outcomes. The Association may select a representative from each school site. 
The Association team shall meet virtually with a District team of three to four members 
in a consultation committee. Meetings shall be conducted pursuant to agendas set 
jointly in advance by the Parties, and held at mutually-agreeable times.

22.02 The District shall consult with teachers and POEA in developing its “Learning 
Continuity and Attendance Plan” for the 2020-2021 school year as required by SB 
98. The District shall provide a copy of the “Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan” in 
draft format at least 24 hours prior to adoption of the plan by the Board of Trustees.

22.03 The District shall provide all bargaining unit members at a school site with the 
District COVID Coordinator's name, cell phone number, and work email address 
designated as the single point of contact who will work with Sonoma County 
Department of Health Services based on Sonoma County Roadmap to Safe Reopening as 
of the (July 8, 2020)

22.04 Due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, the Association reserves the right to 
negotiate safety and/or any impacts and effects related to the COVID-19 pandemic as 
needed.

23.0 DURATION

23.01 The Parties share joint interests in keeping communications open and working 
collaboratively for the benefit of students, staff, parents, and the District community as 
events continue to unfold during the pandemic.

23.02 This MOU shall expire in full without precedent on June 30, 2021 unless 
extended by mutual written agreement of the Parties.

182



183



184



185



186



 

  
	 	  

 
  

 

     
 

   
 

        
        

   
 

      

 
          

            
             

             
   

 

 
              

         
        

        
         

              
     

 
             
            

             
          
         

         
              
           

           
               

          
               

   

          
        

              
      

                
       

             
          

       

COAST 
SCHOOL OF EDUCATION 

North Coast Teacher Induction Program 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between 

Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools as the Local Educational Agency
For the North Coast Teacher Induction Program,

Participating County Offices of Education,
And 

Participating School Districts and Employing Agencies 
A.   General  

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools,
serving as the Local Education, Agency (LEA) for the North Coast Teacher Induction Program (“Program”),
and the County Offices of Education, districts, schools, employing agencies, and independent charter schools
(collectively “District”) signing below. The term of this MOU commences on July 1, 2020, and terminates 
on June 30, 2021. 

B.  Purpose  

The purpose of the MOU is to establish a formal working relationship between the parties. The Program will
provide and coordinate services and support to guide Candidates in meeting California credential
requirements through the state-accredited Teacher Induction Credential Programs including General
Education Clear, Education Specialist Clear Credential Program, Designated Subjects Credential Programs:
Career Technical Education (CTE), Adult Education (AE), and the university-based Intern Program.
Throughout this document, new teachers from all of the credential areas are referred to as “Candidates” and 
veteran teachers are referred to as “Mentors.” 

C.  Eligibility  

Eligible “Candidates” are those hired within the NCTIP regional “Consortium” defined as the following 
counties: Del Norte, Humboldt, Lake, Marin, Mendocino, Napa, Nevada, Sonoma, and Trinity Counties.
The following credential programs are available to “Candidates” within the Consortium: Intern Program: 
Candidates who have obtained an Intern Credential from an accredited partner university. Preliminary 
Credential Program: Designated Subjects (CTE) and (AE) candidates who meet the industry experience
and pre-requisite CCTC requirements. Clear Credential Program: Candidates holding preliminary 
Multiple Subject, Single Subject, or Education Specialist Credential, Out of State and Out of Country trained 
teachers, and Designated Subjects (CTE) and (AE) candidates. Note: Adult Education, Career Technical
Education, General Education, Special Education and Intern candidates who are outside the Consortium may 
be eligible to participate in the Program components on a full fee-for-service basis. Candidates who hold a 
preliminary credential and need to obtain their Clear Credential who are beyond their first two years of
teaching, and/or are teachers in Private Schools, are eligible to participate in the program components on a
fee-for-service basis. 

D.  LEA  Responsibilities  
  
1. Employ an Executive Director whose primary duty is to administer the Program and employ support staff

whose primary duty is to support the administration of the Program.
2. Provide sufficient and appropriate workspace for the Executive Director, Program support staff, Program

Coordinators, Curriculum Specialist, Registrar and Credential Advisors. 
3. Provide office support services for the Consortium, including, but not limited to, mail service, phone, fax,

Internet services, technology support, and meeting space for Program activities.
4. Provide business and legal services required for Program implementation for the region.
5. Develop and establish procedures for Program evaluation through the California Commission on Teacher

Credentialing (CCTC) Accreditation Cycle. Submit Preconditions, Common Standards, Program Review 

187



 

  
	 	  

 
  

 

       
            

           
             

              
    

           
       

              
        

  
             

               
   

                
           

        
 

     
 

               
           

               
       

     
             

             
     

         
            

       
           

         
     

 
    
 

             
    

               
             

  
              

           
        

             
     

          
       

         
         
             
            

       
           

state reports, and required fees in a timely manner.
6. Provide a process for equitable distribution of mentoring, support, formative assessment, and credential

services to Candidates and Mentors in all participating Districts and COEs within the region. 
7. Convene Program Regional Advisory Board meetings a minimum of two times per year, District

Coordinators’ meetings two times per year, and Regional Leadership Team meetings a minimum of five
times per year.

8. Develop and provide Professional Development for Candidates and their Mentors to be held in multiple
locations within the geographical region served by the parties.

9. Assume overall fiscal responsibility for the administration of the program budget, including submission of
year-end expenditure reports and any other documentation required by CCTC and/or CDE in relation to 
the Program.

10. Establish a Budget Agreement and reporting requirements for the transfer of funds to Districts. The 
amount of funds distributed shall be based on the actual number of eligible Candidates and Mentors who 
enrolled in each calendar year.

11. Under direction of the Executive Director, program staff will evaluate Candidate participation to
determine if candidates are accessing professional development offerings for the purpose of determining 
needed cost adjustments on behalf of participating Districts. 

E. County Offices of Education/University Partners/Lead Districts 

1. Appoint a liaison to serve on the Program Regional Advisory Board. The liaison should be a designee
authorized by the County Superintendent of Schools, the Dean of Education, and/or the District
Superintendent to fulfill the roles and responsibilities assigned to him or her. The liaison supports the
Program by providing ongoing updates, communication, and information to county office personnel,
university staff, and district superintendents.

2. Assign one or more credential analyst to work directly with Program staff to assist in identifying 
Candidates who are eligible for Program services as described by state guidelines and to assist school
district staff in identifying eligible Candidates. 

3. Provide meeting and conference rooms at no charge to the Program.
4. Provide the County Program Coordinator with office and/or storage space, computer and fax access,

telephone services, and limited mailing, photocopying and office supplies.
5. Provide collaborative employer input in the Candidates development of an Individual Learning Plan

within the first 60-days of hire and in program evaluation including administrative mid-year survey, end-
of-year surveys, and CCTC Accreditation. 

F. District Responsibilities 

1. Appoint a District Coordinator whose assignment includes dedicated time to fulfill the District
Coordinator roles and responsibilities. 

2. Identify all candidates upon hire who are eligible for Program services as described by state guidelines. 
3. Identify all qualified Interns who are eligible for Program support and supervision services as described 

by state guidelines. 
4. Communicate to all site administrators the Program requirements, including release time to participate in

required observations (2-4 days) and employer input in the Candidates development of an Individual 
Learning Plan within the first 60-days of hire. 

5. Provide Candidates release time for observations and one-to-one consultations with the Mentor as 
described in the District Roles and Responsibilities. 

6. Make every effort to assign Candidates to classrooms appropriate to their novice status, avoiding 
whenever possible, combination classrooms, secondary assignments with multiple preps, teaching 
assignments at multiple sites, and multiple adjunct duties. 

7. Provide newly hired teachers with a District Orientation. 
8. Ensure that Interns do not displace certificated employees and are evaluated on an annual basis. 
9. Ensure that all Interns receive protected time for employer–provided support in weekly course planning,

coaching within the classroom, problem-solving regarding students, curriculum and teaching. A District
shall give special supervision and assistance to each intern above and beyond that given to other newly 

188



 

  
	 	  

 
  

 

           
           

                  
             

 
              

            
         

         
  

           
         

             
   

        
         
           
       
          
         

          
       

       
             
            
                    

      

              
               
                 
                    
           
 

            
             

   
 

                     
           

             
         

 
                

              
  

  
             

   
 

                
 

 

employed certificated and newly employed school personnel. A District shall seek the assistance of the 
college or university in coordinating the program for the intern. (Education Code 44465) 

10. For Interns who have not yet completed the EL preparation, the district must assign the on-site Mentor or
other designated individual, within the first 10 days of serving as a teacher of record on the intern 
credential. 

11. Assign a qualified Mentor to each eligible Candidate within 30 days of enrollment in the Program who 
meets the Commission’s identified criteria of a valid corresponding Clear or Life Credential, three (3)
years successful teaching experience, and English learner authorization. Pair Candidates with Mentors 
who most closely match their teaching assignment, including grade level and subject matter, and their
credential. 

12. Utilize defined selection criteria to identify high-quality, experienced teachers to serve as Mentors for
Candidates. Mentors must demonstrate effective coaching, interpersonal and communication skills and: 
• Display best practices in providing “just in time” and longer term analysis of teaching practice to

help candidates develop enduring professional skills. 
• Are committed to attend coaching/mentor trainings, meetings and to meet weekly with Candidates; 
• Display willingness to work collaboratively with colleagues and regional NCTIP staff; 
• Embrace a positive attitude and disposition towards students and teaching; 
• Develop a sustained and thoughtful collegial relationship with Candidates; 
• Demonstrate leadership skills, curriculum expertise, and knowledge of district resources; 
• Serve as a role model for the teaching profession. 

13. Provide Mentors compensated time to participate in the Program Mentor training on observation 
protocol, learning-focused conversations, “just-in-time” coaching and one-to-one consultations with
Candidates(s) as described in the District Roles and Responsibilities. 

14. Facilitate the distribution of Program funds to Mentors and District Coordinators for compensation. 
15. Participate in the Program evaluation and the CCTC Accreditation Cycle, as needed. 

G. Districts Fiscal Responsibilities and Terms 

1. Credential Services are provided on a Fee-for-Service basis. In 2020/2021, the Fee will be
$3,500.00 per clear credential Candidate and $3,500.00 per Intern registered in the Program.
Refer to the current Fee-for-Service schedule for additional credentialing services provided. Districts will 
be invoiced for each individual request for credential services. It is expected that invoices be paid 
promptly upon receipt or as agreed upon by both parties. 

2. District candidate participation will be monitored to evaluate if participating District Candidates have
accessed professional development offering to determine if a program cost adjustment on behalf of the
District is necessary. 

3. Funds will be credited to districts to offset the costs of the Mentor stipends at the rate of $1,250 per
eligible Clear Credential candidate (includes Multiple Subject, Single Subject, Education Specialist, or
Designated Subjects - CTE and AE) enrolled in the Program. Districts will receive $1250 per eligible 
Intern teacher. (Mentor stipends are pro-rated when partial services are rendered.) 

4. Funds will also be credited to districts to offset the costs of the District Coordinators stipend, pro-rated,
depending on the total number of Candidates. District Coordinator compensation is at a rate of $100.00 
per Candidate. 

5. Private school and out-of-consortium partners will receive a budget addendum describing the full fee-for-
service costs. 

6. The District is responsible to facilitate the distribution of Funds to Mentors and District Coordinators for
compensation. 

189



 

  
	 	  

 
  

 

  
             

               
          

        
 

     
 

             
            

        
 

   
 

               
            

           
            

           
 

 
     

 
            

                 
               

 
   

 
               

 
   

 
            

         
           

     
 

 
 
              

               
               

           
          

             
    

 
              

           
          

 

H.  Other  Terms  and  Conditions  

All products and materials developed by the Program are the exclusive property of the LEA. District and 
COE employees, staff, and subcontractors shall not have the right to disseminate, market, or otherwise use
the products or materials without the expressed written permission of the LEA designee. 

As between the Parties hereto, it is understood and agreed that: 

1. Candidates Employment Status: 

Candidates are and shall remain District employees for any and all purposes throughout the term 
of this Agreement. Candidates shall not be considered an employee, agent, representative, nor 
independent contractor of LEA for any purpose whatsoever. 

2. Indemnification: 

District shall assume full responsibility for its’ employees. District agrees to hold and save LEA 
harmless from and against any claim, demand, action or cause of action that may be asserted by any 
District Program participant arising out of injury or death suffered by any District employee Program
participants, including, but not limited to, third party actions for injury or death otherwise covered 
under applicable workers’ compensation laws and regardless of the sole or concurring negligence of 
LEA. 

3. Maintenance of records: 

District agrees to keep and maintain adequate and current written records in accordance with Program
requirements during the term of this Agreement. The records will be in any format that may be 
specified by the State of California. The records will be available to LEA at all times. 

4. Assignment: 

This Agreement shall not be assigned by District. Any such assignment shall be null and void. 

5. Severability: 

The provisions of this Agreement are divisible; if any such provisions shall be deemed invalid or 
unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed limited to the extent necessary to render it valid and 
enforceable and the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect 
without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

6.  Waiver: 

No delay or omission by either party in exercising any right under this Agreement shall operate as a
waiver of that or any other right. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement, or consent to any 
departure by either party from any provision shall be effective in any event unless it is in writing, 
designated a waiver and signed by the party waiving the breach. Such a waiver shall be effective only 
in the specific instance and for the purpose of which it is given. 

7. Constructions and Governing Law: 

The captions used in connection with this agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not be
construed as part of this Agreement. This agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

190



8. Entire Agreement: 

This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and communications between LEA 
and District, whether written or oral, express or implied, relating to the subject matter of this 
agreement and is intended as a complete and final expression of the terms of the agreement between 
LEA and District and shall not be changed or subject to change orally. The parties further agree and 
acknowledge that neither they nor anyone on their behalf made any inducements, agreements, 
promises, or representations other than those set forth in this Agreement. 

9. Third Parties: 

Except as otherwise explicitly provided herein, nothing in this agreement, whether expressed or 
implied, is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this agreement on any 
other persons other than the Parties and their respective successors and assigns, nor is anything in this 
agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third persons to any Party, 
nor shall any provision give any third parties any right of subrogation or action over or against any of 
the Parties hereto. This Agreement is not intended to and does not create any third-party beneficiary 
rights whatsoever. 

10. Relationship of the Parties: 

No joint venture, partnership, agency or employment relationship is created by this agreement. No 
Party shall act as an agent or partner of any other Party or make any commitments for or create any 
obligations of any other Party except as provided herein without such other Party's prior written 
consent. 

11. Survival: 

The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the expiration of the Term and the termination of this 
Agreement. Amendments and Extensions to this MOU may be made only by written agreement 
signed by all parties. 

Authorized signatures below indicate understanding and acceptance of the terms of this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

Authorized Signatures: 

Dr. Steven Herrington I Superintendgit 
Printed Name/Title 

y Superintendent of Schools as LEA: 
' 

JasonA. LeaI executiveDirector 
Printed Name/Title Date 

Participating Agency: Name of District or County Office of Education: 

Signature Printed Name/Title Date 

NCSOE MOU 20-21 

191



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
REGULAR MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

June 17, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 6:15 p.m., 
Wednesday, June 17, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 8160129700259 President, Cindy Pryor, 
presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL      Staff 
 Governing Board         Dr. Tina Rasori, Interim Superintendent  
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT      and Secretary to the Board  
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT    Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official 
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT from 6:15 to 8:34pm.               Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary    

Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

              
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
Ms. Pryor announced that items to be discussed in Closed Session were issues regarding personnel and collective bargaining.   

 
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 6:17 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION  
 5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: 

 5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
  (No additional information required) 
 5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT 

Title: Psychologist, Counselor, Interim Superintendent   
 5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
  Title:  Superintendent  

 5.2 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6: 
  5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate 

  5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate 

  5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization unrepresented employees:  Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff 

 
6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING   
The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 7:33 p.m.     

 
7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY  
Ms. Pryor comment during Closed Session, action was taken that would be ratified later in the meeting. 
 
8. AGENDA MODIFICATION  
Mr. Way moved Consent Item to Action Item 16.9.  Ms. Pryor moved item 15 Discussion/Information Item after Action item 16.9.   
The Governing Board agreed to extend the Board meeting to10:30 pm. 
 
9. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
There were none.    
 
10. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD 
The Governing Board thanked staff members for helping to return student’s personal belongings. Ms. Hinton discussed all of the 
efforts that each Board member puts into every decision they make. Ms. Franicevic thanked her fellow Board members for their 
mentorship and their friendship.  
  
 
 
 
 
 192



 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 17, 2020 
Page 2 
 
11. RECOGNITION OF SERVICE TO THE DISTRICT 
Khush Gheyara from Caldwells Flores and Winter Scholarship Foundation awarded a $2,000 scholarship to a graduating student at 
Northwest Prep Charter School. The recipient was recognized by Mr. Napoleon for her many attributes including, ability to 
communicate, dedication to her studies, and her compassionate leadership.  
 

12.1 Announcements 
Dr. Rasori gave an update on the YMCA Program procedures (COVID -19) during summer break. She thanked everyone who 
helped return student’s belongings back to them and commented that they did an awesome job! 
 

12.2 Curriculum 
Dr. Rasori commented that computers are being updated so they are ready for the beginning of the school year. She commented 
that the new Student Information System (SIS) Aeries rollover will be on July 23, 2020. She commented that we are working on an 
online student registration and a communication system (Parent Square) that can be accessed on new information system (Aeries).  
 

12.3 Maintenance, Grounds and Operations 
There was none.  
 

12.4 Enrollment 
There was none. 
 
14. ASSOCIATION REPORTS  
 14.1 POEA 
Ms. Zavala commented that POEA would like to acknowledge and thanked Dr. Rasori for stepping in as Interim Superintendent 
and how amazing she is to work with. She thanked the Board for how tirelessly they work. She commented on association 
activities.   

 
14.2 POCA 

Ms. Tunheim commented that the association is eager for the start of the new year.   
 
15. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS  
15.1 Discussion of what the School Year and Classrooms will look like in 2020-2021  
Item 15.1moved after item 16.9 
 
16. ACTION ITEMS 
16.1  Public Hearing on 2020-2021 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter   

School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School and Statement of Reasons for Excess 
Reserves   

Ms. Koha reviewed the budget highlights and Statement of Reasons for Excess Reserves.      
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing on the 2020-2021 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, 
Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School and Statement of Reasons for 
Excess Reserves. Ms. Pryor Closed Public Hearing. There were no comments. 

 
16.2  Approval of 2020-2021 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter   

School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School and Statement of Reasons for Excess 
Reserves        

The 2020-2021Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep 
Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School and Statement of Reasons for Excess Reserves. Was approved as presented by 
Ms. Hinton and seconded by Ms. Franicevic.Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye (4-0) 
Ms. Mohr absent   

 
16.3 Approval of the COVID-19 Operations Written Report for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, 

Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School.  
 Dr. Rasori gave highlights of the Piner-Olivet USD Strategic Plan: LCAP Goals and Action The COVID -19 Operations Written 
Report for the Piner-Olivet School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and 
the Piner-Olivet Charter School was approved (with adding to the report loss of learning during time period of Distance Learning ) 
on  the motion of Mr. Way, seconded by Ms. Franicevic. Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. 
Way aye (4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   
 
16.4 Approval of Resolution #535 Declaring Indefinite Salaries for 2020-2021 
Resolution #535 declaring indefinite salaries for 2020-2021 was approved as presented on the motion Ms. Hinton of seconded by 
Mr. Way.   Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye (4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   

 
 193



 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 17, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
16.5 Public Hearing and Ratification of Closed Session Action Regarding 2019-2020 Contract Agreements between the 
District and the Piner-Olivet Classified Association (POCA)     
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  Ms. Pryor closed the Public Hearing. Ms. Hinton moved to ratify 
Closed Session action approving the 2019-2020 contract agreements between the District and the Piner-Olivet Classified 
Association (POCA), seconded by Mr. Way. Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye (4-0) 
Ms. Mohr absent   
     
16.6 Approval of Addendum to the Interim Superintendent Employment Agreement     
The Addendum to the Interim Superintendent Employment Agreement was approved to extend contract to July 31, 2020 on the 
motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms. Franicevic.  Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way 
aye (4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   
 
16.7 Approval of Resolution # 536 2020-21 Line of Credit with Sonoma County Treasury     
Resolution #536 2020-21 line of credit with Sonoma County Treasury was approved as presented on the motion of Mr. Way, 
seconded by Ms. Hinton.  Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye (4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   
 
16.8 Approval of the Low Performing Student Block Grant Plan Modification for Piner-Olivet Charter School 
The Low Performing Student Block Grant Plan modification for Piner-Olivet Charter School was approved as presented on the 
motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Mr. Way.   Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye 
(4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   
 
16.9  Approval of Vended Meal Contract with Santa Rosa City Schools from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 
Mr. Way commented that he would like to have further discussion on the meal program. The Vended Meal Contract with Santa 
Rosa City Schools from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 was approved as presented on the motion of Mr. Way, seconded by 
Ms. Franicevic. Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic aye, Ms. Hinton aye, Ms. Pryor aye, Mr. Way aye (4-0) Ms. Mohr absent   
 
15. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS  
15.1 Discussion of what the School Year and Classrooms will look like in 2020-2021  
The Board discussed the reopening of the 2020-2021. 
 
17. CONSENT ITEMS 
 The following consent items were approved on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Mr. Way, all aye.  

17.1 The minutes of the regular Board meeting held June 3, 2020, 
17.2 The Personnel Action Report, 
17.3 The vendor warrants 
17.4 The Sonoma County SELPA Local Plan B: Governance and Administration Certification 5: Participating (LEA) 

Piner-Olivet Union School District 
17.5 The routine budget updates 
17.6 The vended meal contract with Santa Rosa City Schools from July 2020 through June 30, 2021(Moved to 

Action 16.9), and 
17.7  The process for the 2019-2020 Consolidated Applications Part I & II 

 
18. ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD 
 There were none.   
 
19. DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

19.1 Next Regular Board Meeting – August 12, 2020, Special Board Meeting on June 29, 2020 at 5:00 pm., and Special 
Board Meeting – July 7, 2020 at 6 pm. 
 

20. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
There was no Closed Session 
 

21. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 There was no Closed Session 
 
22. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING 

There was no Closed Session  
 

23. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA 
There was no Closed Session 
 

 
 194



 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 17, 2020 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
24. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 10:09 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

195



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

June 29, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 5:16 p.m., 
Monday, June 29, 2020, in Room 24 at Schaefer Charter School. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL       
 Governing Board           
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT       
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT     
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT    
              John Way, Member PRESENT 
              Janae Franicevic PRESENT                                                   

              
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
              There were none. 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
              The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 5:17 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION 
              Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action upon any of the following items:  
 5.1 Superintendent Search: Review candidates & select finalist for interview.  
.     
6. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY  
              Ms. Pryor announced that there was nothing to report from Closed Session. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 6:53 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

196



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

July 7, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 5:32 p.m., 
Wednesday, July 7, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 817-1944-7176. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL      Staff 
 Governing Board         Dr. Tina Rasori, Interim Superintendent  
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT      and Secretary to the Board  
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT    Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official 
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT (from 5:30 pm. to 8:34pm) Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary   
 Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

              
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
Ms. Pryor announced that items to be discussed in Closed Session were issues regarding personnel and collective bargaining.   

 
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 5:47 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION  
 5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: 

 5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
  (No additional information required) 
 5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT 

Title: Music Teacher, Custodian    
 5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
  Title:  Superintendent  

 5.2 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6: 
  5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate 

  5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate 

  5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 Name of organization unrepresented employees:  Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff 

 
6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING   
The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 6:21 p.m.     

 
7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY  
Ms. Pryor commented that during Closed Session, action was taken that would be ratified later in the meeting. 
 
8. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

8.1 Announcements 
Dr. Rasori commented that the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and an annual update to the LCAP are not required 
for the 2020-2021 school year. She commented on the Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for the 2020-2021 school year.  
 
9. BOARD POLICIES 
 9.1 BP 4113.5 (A) 4213.5, 4313.5 Working Remotely  
BP 4113.5 4213.5, 4313.5 Working Remotely was moved to approved with the addition of highlighted language (be reasonably 
responsible) on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Mr. Way.  
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor – aye, Mr. Way- aye.  
 
 9.2 BP 6157(a) Distance Learning   
BP 6157 Distance Learning was moved to approved with the addition of highlighted language (District and) on the motion of Ms. 
Hinton, seconded by Ms. Mohr.  
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- aye, Ms. Pryor – aye, Mr. Way- aye.  
 
 
 197



 
Special Meeting – Governing Board 
July 7, 2020 
Page 2 
 
 
10. ACTION ITEMS 

10.1 Approval of MOU between the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) and the Piner-Olivet Educators 
Association (POEA) for the 2020-2021 Northwest Prep Teaching Hours and Collaborative Planning Time 
The MOU between the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) and the Piner-Olivet Educators Association (POEA) for the 
2020-2021 Northwest Prep Teaching Hours and Collaborative Planning Time was approved as presented on the motion of  
Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms. Franicevic.  
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic – aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- Aye, Mr. Pryor- aye, and Mr. Way- aye 
 

10.2 Public Hearing and Approval of Piner-Olivet Union School District Re-Opening Schools for the 2020-2021 
School Year. 

Dr. Rasori gave highlights of the Navigating a Safe Return to School: POUSD Fall Re-Opening Plan. The  Piner-Olivet Educators 
Association (POEA) and Piner-Olivet Classified Association (POCA) surveyed their members on (How comfortable they are to 
return to school); Ms. Zavala (POEA) and Ms. Cahill (POCA) shared the results of their association’s survey. The Board 
commented on the stage that Sonoma County is now in and the rise of reported cases of COVID -19. They shared their concerns 
for the safety of everyone. They discussed the results of all of the surveys. Ms. Hinton motion to approve Virtual Academy Stage 3 
for the start of the school, seconded by Ms. Franicevic. There was further discussion on the motion.  The motion was withdrawn by 
Ms. Hinton.   
Ms. Franicevic motion to approve 100% Virtual Learning until we are in stage 3 or mandated by the Health Department or the 
Governor, seconded by Mr. Way. .  
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic – aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Mohr- Aye, Mr. Pryor- aye, and Mr. Way- aye 
 
  
11. CONSENT ITEMS 
 The following consent items were approved with on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms. Mohr, all aye.  

11.1 The Placement Agreement between University of Southern California (USC) and Piner-Olivet Charter School 
Effective August 13, 2020. 

 
12. DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

12.1 Next Regular Board Meeting – August 12, 2020, Special Board Meeting –July 22, 2020 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

198



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

July 10, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 3:00 p.m., 
Friday, July 10, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 871 2443 3135. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL      Staff 
 Governing Board         Dr. Tina Rasori, Interim Superintendent  
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT      and Secretary to the Board  
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT    Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official 
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT     Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary   
 Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

          
3. ACTION ITEMS 
 

3.2 Review and Approval of Piner-Olivet Union School District Re-Opening Schools for the 2020-2021 School 
Year. 

Ms. Mohr moved to approve Pine-Olivet Union School District Re-Opening Schools for the 2020-2021 School Year 
100% Virtual Learning starting on August 17, 2020 until October 2, 2020 while preparing for hybrid model to start 
October 5, 2020 after reassessing the current Pandemic with a possibility of Hybrid or continuing Virtual Learning on 
October 5, 2020 and to add two days to our school calendar, seconded by Mr. Way. 
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic – aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Mohr – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Mr. Way- Aye.  
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 3:56 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

199



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

July 15, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 6:31 p.m., 
Wednesday, July 15, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 87327044265. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL       
 Governing Board           
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT       
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT     
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT        

Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

              
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
Staff and community members relayed a desire for the Board to consider keeping Dr. Rasori as Superintendent. A comment was 
made of lack of teacher participation in the Superintendent Search process.  

 
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 6:45 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION  
 5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: 
 Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action upon any of the following items: 

 5.1.1 Superintendent Search: Discussion and Review of Offer 
Ms. Pryor commented that during Closed Session, further direction was given to the hiring firm. 

  
6. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

200



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

July 29, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 4:06 p.m., 
Wednesday, July 29, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 886 5332 9066. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL       
 Governing Board           Staff    
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT        Dr. Tina Rasori, Interim Superintendent
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT     and Secretary to the Board    
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT      Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official
 Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary  
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

              
3. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEM 
               3.1 Welcome and Introduce the New Superintendent  
Ms. Pryor commented that the Governing Board selected Dr. Steve Charbonneau as the new Superintendent for Piner-Olivet 
Union School District. The Governing Board and staff members welcomed Dr. Steve Charbonneau to the District. Dr.  
Charbonneau thanked the Governing Board for the warm welcome. He shared his experience in education and stated that he is 
excited to join the POUSD team.   

  
4. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

201



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
SPECIAL MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

July 30, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The special meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 5:30 p.m., 
Thursday, July 30, 2020, conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 88606299819. President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 

 
2. ROLL CALL      Staff 
 Governing Board         Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official  
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT       
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT     
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk PRESENT          

Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT      
              John Way, Member PRESENT                                                  

     
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
Staff and community members relayed a desire for the Board to reconsider retaining Dr. Rasori  in the Director of Innovative 
Learning position. 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 5:32 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION  
 5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: 

 5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT 
Title: Director of Innovative Learning  
    

6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING   
The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 7:28p.m.     
 

7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY 
Ms. Pryor commented that meeting adjourned at 7:28 pm.  
  

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
                     Dr. Tina Rasori 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

202



203



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2020 through 07/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1792541 07/09/2020 Apple Inc. 04-4390 Ergo Equipment for Anna 192.69 

1792542 07/09/2020 Bill's Lock & Safe Service 01-4380 District Truck Body Locks 550.10 

1792543 07/09/2020 BWS Distributors Inc 05-4370 Back Support Belt for SCH Cust. R.M. 17.17 

1792544 07/09/2020 Dept Of Justice Accounting Office 01-5860 Open PO for Personnel Fingerprinting 

2019/20

64.00 

1792545 07/09/2020 Horizon 01-4380 JL/POCS sprinker repair supplies 117.73 

1792546 07/09/2020 Houghton Mifflin Harcourt 01-4110 K-6 ELA Curriculum for Schaefer 85,182.20 

K-6 ELA Curriculum Olivet 79,448.07 164,630.27 

1792547 07/09/2020 Jennifer Flory dba Jennifer Flory Consulting 01-5830 LCAP & District Marketing & Consulting 

Services

33.33 

1792548 07/09/2020 Mead Clark 09-4380 NWP Rm23 242.48 

1792549 07/09/2020 Recology Sonoma Marin 01-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 19/20 all site 398.15 

04-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 19/20 all site 296.63 

05-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 19/20 all site 266.97 

09-5560 Waste Bin Monthly Charges 19/20 all site 104.12 1,065.87 

1792550 07/09/2020 Redwood Vacuum & Janitorial 01-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Serivces 

2019/20

14.62 

04-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Serivces 

2019/20

82.53 

05-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Serivces 

2019/20

11.67 

09-4370 Open PO for Custodial Parts & Serivces 

2019/20

24.28 133.10 

1792551 07/09/2020 Sonoma Co Office Of Education 05-5202 English Learner Leadership Conference- J. 

Garcia

160.00 

English Learner Leadership Conference- 

K. Harris

160.00 

English Learner Leadership Conference- T. 

Henry

160.00 

English Learner Leadership Conference- T. 

Martin

160.00 

L. Garlock-Positive Behavior Interventions & 

Supports TK-2

40.00 

09-5202 L. Bergstrom- Managing Serious Behavior 

(MSB)

150.00 830.00 

1792552 07/09/2020 Veritiv Operating Source Unisource - Pleasanton 01-4380 Summer Cleaning supplies for all sites 3,240.53 

1793740 07/16/2020 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - 2019/20 Olivet 680.00 

1793741 07/16/2020 AT&T Mobility 01-5900 Mobile Phone for Maint Supervisor 83.04 

1793742 07/16/2020 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 141.81 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 4

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Aug  6 

2020  8:34AM

043 - Piner-Olivet Union 204



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2020 through 07/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1793743 07/16/2020 City of Santa Rosa Police Dept 01-5880 Alarm fees and $15.oo 2,015.00 

Annual Alarm Permit Fee 15.00 2,030.00 

1793744 07/16/2020 City Of Santa Rosa 01-5530 City Water Acct# 021026 2019-20 -JL 206.99 

05-5530 City Water Acct# 026852 2019-20 SCH 379.73 586.72 

1793745 07/16/2020 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 District Wide Milk - 2019-20 22.50 

1793746 07/16/2020 Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost LLP 01-5823 2019/20 Legal Services 3,465.00 

1793747 07/16/2020 Horizon 01-4380 JL/POCS Sprinkler repais supplies 45.85 

1793748 07/16/2020 Kelly Moore Paint Co 01-4380 Paint & Paint Supplies for 19/20 165.76 

09-4380 Paint & Paint Supplies for 19/20 89.26 255.02 

1793749 07/16/2020 Kendall-Hunt Publishing Co 09-4110 Middle School Math teacher guide order 194.23 

1793750 07/16/2020 Mead Clark 09-4380 NWP Rm33 31.88 

1793751 07/16/2020 Office Depot 01-4350 Adobe Sub. District Office staff 261.58 

04-4350 Open PO for Office Supplies - Olivet 

2019/20

60.42-

09-4350 Thermometer infrared NWP 86.59- 114.57 

1793752 07/16/2020 PACE Supply Corp. 09-4380 JL/POCS Staff Kitchen repair supplies 450.74 

Olivet Rm3 Drinking fountain 476.11 926.85 

1793753 07/16/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

44.66 

01-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

510.64 

04-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

40.63 

04-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

676.17 

05-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

144.07 

05-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

1,299.57 

09-5510 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

11.32 

09-5520 Acct #0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

21.01 2,748.07 

1793754 07/16/2020 Shell Wex Bank 01-4362 Fuel for trucks 2019-2020 477.20 

1793755 07/16/2020 Weeks Drilling & Pump Co Inc 01-5630 JL Portion 1,038.35 

NWP Water System Service 19/20 230.57 

09-5630 NWP Water System Service 19/20 474.15 1,743.07 

1794578 07/23/2020 Aeries Software, Inc. dba Eagle Software 01-5840 Software - Aeries 2,775.00 

04-5840 Software - Aeries 2,025.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 4

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Aug  6 

2020  8:34AM

043 - Piner-Olivet Union 205



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2020 through 07/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1794578 07/23/2020 Aeries Software, Inc. dba Eagle Software 05-5840 Software - Aeries 2,025.00 

09-5840 Software - Aeries 675.00 7,500.00 

1794579 07/23/2020 PRMD County of Sonoma 04-5630 Permit OPR95-1138 436.00 

1794580 07/23/2020 CSBA 01-5300 CSBA Membership 8,958.00 

01-5830 CSBA Gamut - policy 4,830.00 13,788.00 

1794581 07/23/2020 First Alarm Burglary Systems 09-5800 Monitoring Services for NWP 

07/01/20-12/31/20

1,532.16 

1794582 07/23/2020 KONE Inc. 01-5630 Maintenance coverage for 

07/01/2020-12/31/2020

197.88 

1794583 07/23/2020 San Joaquin COE 01-5865 EDJOIN - 2020-2021 450.00 

1794584 07/23/2020 Seesaw Learning, Inc dba Seesaw 01-4340 Software - Elementary Seasaw License 1,196.25 

04-4340 Software - Elementary Seasaw License 1,443.75 

05-4340 Software - Elementary Seasaw License 1,485.00 4,125.00 

1794585 07/23/2020 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - 2019/20 Olivet 82.00 

1794586 07/23/2020 Anova Center of Education 01-5810 SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - CC 4,888.24 

SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - LJ 4,651.96 

SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - TR 4,651.96 

SPED/ NPS 2019/20 - TS 4,809.48 19,001.64 

1794587 07/23/2020 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 1,187.09 

1794588 07/23/2020 Blick Art Materials 09-4310 art supplies for elective 77.15 

1794589 07/23/2020 Business Card 01-4340 Adobe 14.99 

01-4390 Amzn-COVID Decals/signs 166.68 

Joann Store Supplies 25.04 

01-5202 CHC Training A. Teklemariam 130.00 

01-5900 Mobile 73.44 

01-5950 USPS 48.65 458.80 

1794590 07/23/2020 City Electric Supply 01-4380 Voltage Tester for Maint. Sup. 95.92 

1794591 07/23/2020 Hitmen Termite & Pest Control 05-5850 SCH 170.00 

1794592 07/23/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct #8210388297-1 - Jack London 80% & 

POCS 20%

54.26 

01-5520 Acct #8210388297-1 - Jack London 80% & 

POCS 20%

20.01 74.27 

1794593 07/23/2020 Sonoma Co Office Of Education 01-5202 Legal Issues Assoc w/ITPs Workshop 50.00 

1794594 07/23/2020 Stephen Roatch Accountancy 01-5821 2018-19 Annual Financial and Compliance 

Audit

1,786.52 

09-5821 2018-19 Annual Financial and Compliance 

Audit

213.48 2,000.00 

1795609 07/30/2020 ACSA 04-5300 ACSA Membership - A Moore 1,260.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 4

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Aug  6 

2020  8:34AM

043 - Piner-Olivet Union 206



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2020 through 07/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1795610 07/30/2020 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - 2020-21 NWP 442.00 

Well Water Testing - 2020/21 Olivet 144.00 

09-5830 Well Water Testing - 2020-21 NWP 238.00 824.00 

1795611 07/30/2020 AT&T Mobility 01-5900 Mobile Phone for Maint Supervisor 83.86 

1795612 07/30/2020 California's Valued Trust 01-9574 Coverage for July 2020 9,378.75 

01-9575 Coverage for July 2020 2,804.78 12,183.53 

1795613 07/30/2020 Mystery Science Inc. 01-4340 Software - Science Membership 499.00 

04-4340 Software - Science Membership 499.00 

05-4340 Software - Science Membership 499.00 1,497.00 

1795614 07/30/2020 The Standard Insurance Co. 01-9576 Coverage for July 2020 224.11 

1795615 07/30/2020 Verizon 01-5900 Mobile Phone for Superintendent 171.42 

Total Number of Checks 52 252,132.91 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 39 233,321.47 01

Olivet Charter School 10 6,891.98 04

Schaefer Charter School 10 6,978.18 05

Charter School Fund 16 4,918.78 09

Cafeteria 1 22.50 13

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 52 252,132.91 

.00 

252,132.91 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 4

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Aug  6 

2020  8:34AM

043 - Piner-Olivet Union 207



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 07/01/2020 through 07/31/2020

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1792553 07/09/2020 Horizon 03-4380 JL/POCS Sprinkler repair supplies 78.50 

1792554 07/09/2020 Recology Sonoma Marin 03-5560 POCS Portion of Waste 19/20 118.65 

1792555 07/09/2020 Veritiv Operating Source Unisource - Pleasanton 03-4380 Summer Cleaning Supplies 360.06 

1793756 07/16/2020 Fishman Supply 03-4370 Annual Custodial Supplies POCS 2019-20 308.69 

1793757 07/16/2020 Horizon 03-4380 JL/POCS Sprinkler repair supplies 30.56 

1793758 07/16/2020 PACE Supply Corp. 03-4380 JL/POCS Staff Kitchen repair 300.49 

1793759 07/16/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 03-5510 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 

Electric Chgs

164.21 

03-5520 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 

Electric Chgs

26.21- 138.00 

1793760 07/16/2020 Weeks Drilling & Pump Co. 03-5630 Irrigation issue work done 692.24 

1794595 07/23/2020 Legacy Center Positive Images 03-5202 Three Hours Consultation for POCS-K. 

Sanft

150.00 

1794596 07/23/2020 Pacific Gas & Electric 03-5510 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 

Electric Chgs

27.64 

03-5520 8775983334-3 & 20% of 88297-1 Gas & 

Electric Chgs

595.93 623.57 

1794597 07/23/2020 Stephen Roatch Accountancy 03-5821 2018-19 Annual Financial and Compliance 

Audit

940.00 

1795616 07/30/2020 Fishman Supply 03-4370 Annual Custodial Supplies POCS 2019-20 251.09 

1795617 07/30/2020 Office Depot 03-4311 Open PO for Classroom Supplies 2019/20 122.17 

Total Number of Checks 13 4,114.02 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund/charter School 13 4,114.02 03

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 13 4,114.02 

.00 

4,114.02 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 1

Generated for Birhana Habtemariam (BHABTEMARIAM), Aug  6 

2020  8:36AM

044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School 208



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00001 JE Trans Date 07/10/2020 JE Posted 07/10/2020 Comment CSBA add ELA membership
2,717.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7110- 5300- 600- 0000 CRDues & Membersh,Board,Und

2,717.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00002 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 reduce admin supplies
700.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 4340- 600- 0000 DRComputer Sftwar,Other Gen

2,000.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 4350- 600- 0000 DROffice Supplies,Other Gen

.00 2,700.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00003 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 09 COVID funding update
16,785.00 09- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,ESSER Fun

7,055.00 09- 3220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Corona.Re

8,661.00 09- 7420- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,State LLM

16,785.00 09- 3210- 0- 0000- 8210- 4370- 000- 0000 CRCustodial Suppl,Operation

7,055.00 09- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

3,661.00 09- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

5,000.00 09- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

65,002.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00004 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 09 LCFF revised update
72,444.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 DRRevenue Limit S,Unrestric

46,164.00 09- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

51,372.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 DRIn Lieu Propert,Unrestric

123,816.00 46,164.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00005 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 09 Lottery revised update
3,930.00 09- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,State Lot

918.00 09- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,Lottery-i

4,848.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00006 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 09 Lottery correction
360.00 09- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 CRState Lottery R,State Lot

.00 360.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0209



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00007 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 09 insurance and buss svs
10,340.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5450- 000- 0000 CROther Insurance,School Ad

15,786.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,School Ad

26,126.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00008 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 05 COVID funding revised update
78,071.00 05- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,ESSER Fun

9,200.00 05- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,GEER fund

142,286.00 05- 3220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Corona.Re

25,529.00 05- 7420- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,State LLM

78,071.00 05- 3210- 0- 0000- 8210- 4370- 000- 0000 CRCustodial Suppl,Operation

9,200.00 05- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

47,286.00 05- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

25,000.00 05- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

10,000.00 05- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

60,000.00 05- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

25,529.00 05- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

510,172.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00009 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 05 revised rev update
229,554.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 DRRevenue Limit S,Unrestric

165,616.00 05- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

164,691.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 DRIn Lieu Propert,Unrestric

11,445.00 05- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,State Lot

1,308.00 05- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,Lottery-i

406,998.00 165,616.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00010 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 04 COVID funding revised
49,203.00 04- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,ESSER Fun

11,500.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,GEER fund

132,822.00 04- 3220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Corona.Re

24,460.00 04- 7420- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,State LLM

49,203.00 04- 3210- 0- 0000- 8210- 4370- 000- 0000 CRCustodial Suppl,Operation

11,500.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

47,822.00 04- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

25,000.00 04- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0210



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00010 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 04 COVID funding revised(continued)
10,000.00 04- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

50,000.00 04- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

24,460.00 04- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

435,970.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00011 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 04 revised rev update
221,759.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 DRRevenue Limit S,Unrestric

161,351.00 04- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

159,654.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 DRIn Lieu Propert,Unrestric

11,095.00 04- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,State Lot

1,268.00 04- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,Lottery-i

393,776.00 161,351.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00012 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 COVID funding revised
80,768.00 01- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,ESSER Fun

13,800.00 01- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,GEER fund

127,744.00 01- 3220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Corona.Re

23,329.00 01- 7420- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,State LLM

80,768.00 01- 3210- 0- 0000- 8210- 4370- 104- 0000 CRCustodial Suppl,Operation

13,800.00 01- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 104- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

42,744.00 01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 104- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

25,000.00 01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 104- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

10,000.00 01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 104- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

50,000.00 01- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 104- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

23,329.00 01- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 104- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

491,282.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00013 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 rev revised update
161,771.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 DRRevenue Limit S,Unrestric

107,815.00 01- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 DREPA Rev,EPA

476,948.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 CRIn Lieu Propert,Unrestric

619,811.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8041- 000- 0000 DRSecured Tax Rol,Unrestric

9,709.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,State Lot

1,153.00 01- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,Lottery-i

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 3 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0211



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

900,259.00 476,948.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00014 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 EPA revised
215,630.00 01- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

.00 215,630.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00015 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 OB8677 revised
50,280.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8677- 000- 0000 DRInteragency Svc,Unrestric

50,280.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00016 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Fund 01 state rev revised
44.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8550- 000- 0000 DRMandated Cost R,Unrestric

44.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00017 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 01 Dir revised update
61,379.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2100- 1300- 600- SG02 CRCert Suprvsrs',Supervisio

9,913.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2100- 3101- 600- SG02 CRBenefits - Strs,Supervisi

890.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2100- 3331- 600- SG02 CRBenefits - Medi,Supervisi

31.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2100- 3501- 600- SG02 CRBenefits - Sui,Supervisio

1,271.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2100- 3601- 600- SG02 CRBenefits - Wcom,Supervisi

76,360.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 1100- 600- SG01 CRTeachers' Salar,Instructi

12,332.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 3101- 600- SG01 CRBenefits - Strs,Instructi

1,107.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 3331- 600- SG01 CRBenefits - Medi,Instructi

11,736.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 3401- 600- SG01 CRH & W Benefits,Instructio

38.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 3501- 600- SG01 CRBenefits - Sui,Instructio

1,581.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 3601- 600- SG01 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instructi

176,638.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00018 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 01 custodial revised update
1,070.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 101- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Operation

17,260.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 2200- 101- 0000 CRClassified Supp,Operation

3,573.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3202- 101- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Operation

251.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3332- 101- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Operation

3,672.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3402- 101- 0000 CRH & W Benefits,Operations

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 4 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0212



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00018 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 01 custodial revised update(continued)
8.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3502- 101- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Operations

353.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3602- 101- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Operation

9,432.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 2200- 104- 0000 CRClassified Supp,Operation

1,953.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3202- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Operation

584.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Operation

137.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3332- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Operation

1,921.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3402- 104- 0000 CRH & W Benefits,Operations

4.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3502- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Operations

188.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3602- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Operation

6,289.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 2200- 109- 0000 CRClassified Supp,Operation

1,302.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3202- 109- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Operation

390.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 109- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Operation

91.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3332- 109- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Operation

1,280.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3402- 109- 0000 CRH & W Benefits,Operations

4.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3502- 109- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Operations

125.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3602- 109- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Operation

49,887.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00019 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 01 revised updates
1,800.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7150- 5211- 600- 0000 CRMileage,Superintendent,Un

2,200.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 5300- 600- 0000 DRDues & Membersh,Operation

85,638.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5450- 600- 0000 CROther Insurance,Other Gen

5,000.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 5520- 104- 0000 DRElectricity,Operations,Un

87,438.00 7,200.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00020 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 01 OB5750 revised
206.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Maintenan

23,228.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,School Ad

8.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 3110- 5750- 104- SG01 CRDir Costs For I,Guidance

691.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

83.00 01- 0000- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 600- SGPD CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

72,524.00 01- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 5750- 600- SG01 DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

48.00 01- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

345.00 96,443.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 5 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0213



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 07/10/2020 through 08/09/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00021 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 04 revised updates
4,733.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 1300- 000- 0000 CRCert Suprvsrs',School Adm

6,083.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Instructi

11,364.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,School Ad

4.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 3110- 5750- 000- SG01 CRDir Costs For I,Guidance

101.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Maintenan

340.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

41.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5750- 000- SGPD DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

35,699.00 04- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 5750- 000- SG01 CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

23.00 04- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

58,223.00 165.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00022 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 04 5750 revised updates
8.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 3110- 5750- 000- SG01 DRDir Costs For I,Guidance Fund 04 revised updates

.00 8.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00023 JE Trans Date 08/09/2020 JE Posted 08/09/2020 Comment Fund 05 5750 revise update
11,723.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,School Ad

5.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 3110- 5750- 000- SG01 DRDir Costs For I,Guidance

104.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Maintenan

351.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

42.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5750- 000- SGPD DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

36,825.00 05- 0000- 0- 1510- 1000- 5750- 000- SG01 CRDir Costs For I,Instructi

24.00 05- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instructi

48,899.00 175.00 Net increase to Appropriations

1,172,760.00 3,832,720.00 Total for Org 043 

Net increase to AppropriationsOrg 043 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 470,370.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 6 of 6

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:24PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 5886945.0214



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 08/06/2020 through 08/08/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00001 JE Trans Date 08/06/2020 JE Posted 08/06/2020 Comment Insurance increase in premiums 2020-21
7,128.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5450- 000- 0000 CRPropLiabl/Insur,School Ad

7,128.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00002 JE Trans Date 08/06/2020 JE Posted 08/06/2020 Comment Business services increase
21,755.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5830- 000- FI SC CRProfessional/co,School Ad

12,583.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5830- 000- HRPY CRProfessional/co,School Ad

44,302.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,School Ad

78,640.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00003 JE Trans Date 08/06/2020 JE Posted 08/06/2020 Comment Revenue increase RS0000
109,850.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8011- 000- 0000 DRRevenue Limit S,Unrestric

101,231.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8096- 000- 0000 DRIn-lieu Propert,Unrestric

85,874.00 03- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA,EPA

7,035.00 03- 1100- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,State Lot

218,116.00 85,874.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00004 JE Trans Date 08/06/2020 JE Posted 08/06/2020 Comment Restricted revenue increase
1,809.00 03- 6300- 0- 0000- 0000- 8560- 000- 0000 DRState Lottery R,Lottery -

1,809.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00005 JE Trans Date 08/07/2020 JE Posted 08/07/2020 Comment SG03 update
12,558.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- SG03 CRInstructional A,Instructi

2,600.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Pers,Instructi

779.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instructi

182.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Medi,Instructi

3,498.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3402- 000- SG03 CRH & W Benefits,Instructio

8.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Sui,Instructio

153.00 03- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instructi

19,778.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00006 JE Trans Date 08/07/2020 JE Posted 08/07/2020 Comment Restricted exp update
6,000.00 03- 6300- 0- 1110- 1000- 4110- 000- 0000 DRTextbooks,Instruction,Reg

6,000.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 4110- 000- 0000 CRTextbooks,Instruction,Reg

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 44, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 2

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:25PM044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School
 5886948.0215



Transfer of Budget Appropriations with 

Comment

Ledger06b

Effective 08/06/2020 through 08/08/2020 Fiscal Year 2021

From ToDescriptionAccount Comment

JE # BR21-00006 JE Trans Date 08/07/2020 JE Posted 08/07/2020 Comment Restricted exp update(continued)
10,261.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 DRInstructional A,Instructi

2,124.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,Instructi

636.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Instructi

149.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instructi

3,513.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3402- 000- 0000 DRH & W Benefits,Instructio

4.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Instructio

125.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instructi

2,313.00 03- 7510- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

8,313.00 22,812.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00007 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment COVID funding updates
33,055.00 03- 3210- 0- 1110- 1000- 4370- 000- 0000 CRCustodial Suppl,Instructi

6,440.00 03- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

15,000.00 03- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Sals,Instructio

7,000.00 03- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

12,292.00 03- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instructi

45,000.00 03- 3220- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Instructi

15,097.00 03- 7420- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instructi

133,884.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00008 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment COVID rev update
33,055.00 03- 3210- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,ESSER Fun

6,440.00 03- 3215- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,GEER fund

79,292.00 03- 3220- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Corona.Re

15,097.00 03- 7420- 0- 0000- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,State LLM

133,884.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR21-00009 JE Trans Date 08/08/2020 JE Posted 08/08/2020 Comment Aeries update
2,344.00 03- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5840- 000- 0000 CRComputer/tech R,School Ad

2,344.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

108,686.00 603,896.00 Total for Org 044 

Net increase to AppropriationsOrg 044 Net Increase in Estimated Fund Balance 40,660.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 44, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 6/13/2020, Ending Post Date = 8/10/2020, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 2

Generated for Felicia Koha (FKOHA), Aug 10 2020  3:25PM044 - Piner-Olivet Charter School
 5886948.0216



 

Piner-Olivet Union School District 
Williams Settlement 

Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary 
 

Education Code §35186(d): A school district shall report summarized data on the nature and 
resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the 
governing board of the school district.  The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly 
basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district.  The report 
shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and 
unresolved complaints.  The complaints and written responses shall be available as public 
records. 
 
Reporting Period: 
 

  January 1 – March 31, 20       April 1 – June 30, 2020 
  July 1 – September 30, 20       October 1 – December 31, 20       

 
No complaints were received during the above time period.  
 
If you received any complaints during the above time period, please complete the 

following table. Enter “0” in any cell that does not apply. 
 

General Subject Area Complaints 
Received 

 

Complaints 
Resolved 

Unresolved 
Complaints 

Instructional Materials 
 

0 0 0 

Facilities 
 

0 0 0 

Teacher Vacancy and/or 
Mis-assignment 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

CAHSEE Intensive 
Instruction and Services 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Total 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
 
 
Board meeting date: 8/12/20 
Date sent to County Superintendent of Schools: 8/13/20  
Sonoma County Office of Education 
5340 Skylane Blvd.  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403  
 

217


	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER
	2.  ROLL CALL
	3. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	4. AGENDA MODIFICTION
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	6. EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE STUDY SESSION
	7. ADJOURNMENT

	5.14 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 6-17-20.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.15 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 6-29-2020 Special.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.16 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 7-7-2020 Special.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.17 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 7-10-2020 Special.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.18 CONSENT Bd Minutes - 7-15-2020 Special.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.19  CONSENT Bd Minutes - 7-29-2020.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.20  CONSENT Bd Minutes - 7-30-2020 Special.pdf
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	5.22.Board Warrant Report POUSD & POCS July 2020.pdf
	Board Warrant Report POUSD July 2020.pdf
	Board Report
	1
	1792541
	1792542
	1792543
	1792544
	1792545
	1792546
	1792547
	1792548
	1792549
	1792550
	1792551
	1792552
	1793740
	1793741
	1793742
	1793743
	1793744
	1793745
	1793746
	1793747
	1793748
	1793749
	1793750
	1793751
	1793752
	1793753
	1793754
	1793755
	1794578
	1794579
	1794580
	1794581
	1794582
	1794583
	1794584
	1794585
	1794586
	1794587
	1794588
	1794589
	1794590
	1794591
	1794592
	1794593
	1794594
	1795609
	1795610
	1795611
	1795612
	1795613
	1795614
	1795615

	2
	01
	04
	05
	09
	13



	Board Warrant Report POCS July 2020.pdf
	Board Report
	1
	1792553
	1792554
	1792555
	1793756
	1793757
	1793758
	1793759
	1793760
	1794595
	1794596
	1794597
	1795616
	1795617

	2
	03




	5.23 a. Budget Updates DI43.pdf
	Transfer of Budget Appropriations with Comment
	43
	2,021
	
	
	BR21-00001
	BR21-00002
	BR21-00003
	BR21-00004
	BR21-00005
	BR21-00006
	BR21-00007
	BR21-00008
	BR21-00009
	BR21-00010
	BR21-00011
	BR21-00012
	BR21-00013
	BR21-00014
	BR21-00015
	BR21-00016
	BR21-00017
	BR21-00018
	BR21-00019
	BR21-00020
	BR21-00021
	BR21-00022
	BR21-00023






	5.23 b. Budget Updates DI44.pdf
	Transfer of Budget Appropriations with Comment
	44
	2,021
	
	
	BR21-00001
	BR21-00002
	BR21-00003
	BR21-00004
	BR21-00005
	BR21-00006
	BR21-00007
	BR21-00008
	BR21-00009






	5.24  CONSENT  Wm Quarterly  District.pdf
	Piner-Olivet Union School District
	Williams Settlement

	ADPA646.tmp
	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER
	2.  ROLL CALL
	3. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	4. AGENDA MODIFICTION
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	6. EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE STUDY SESSION
	7. ADJOURNMENT


	ADPAE4A.tmp
	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER
	2.  ROLL CALL
	3. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	4. AGENDA MODIFICTION
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	6. EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE LEADERSHIP
	7. ADJOURNMENT


	ADPCD12.tmp
	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER
	2.  ROLL CALL
	3. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
	4. AGENDA MODIFICTION
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	6. EFFECTIVE GOVERNANCE LEADERSHIP
	7. ADJOURNMENT





